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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning

          3  everyone.  We're going to start the Committee

          4  meeting.  Today is a pretty hectic day.  We have a

          5  Finance Committee meeting where we have most of the

          6  Members of the Rules Committee present.  We are

          7  pushing and holding back the meeting of State and

          8  Federal Legislation that had to be called at the

          9  last minute, but must be done before we have our one

         10  o'clock stated meeting today.  So, you have to

         11  forgive the Members that are not physically in the

         12  room, but they will be in and out.

         13                 My name is Leroy Comrie.  I Chair the

         14  Committee on Rules, Privileges and Elections.  With

         15  us, we have, at present, Council Member Diana Reyna

         16  from Brooklyn Queens and Council Member Yvette

         17  Clarke coming in from Brooklyn, and Council Member

         18  Melinda Katz from Queens.

         19                 So, today we have before us four

         20  candidates for our review.  They are Angela

         21  Cavaluzzi, a Manhattan resident, Manhattan Borough

         22  President re- appointee to the City Planning

         23  Commission for the remainder of a five year term,

         24  expiring on June 30, 2009, currently serving as a

         25  hold- over since July 1, 2004.
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          2                 Then, we have Mr. Kirk Tzanides, I

          3  got that right Stewart, thank you very much.  A

          4  resident of Brooklyn, Mayoral re- appointee to the

          5  Tax Commission for the remainder of a six year term,

          6  expiring on January 6, 2010, currently serving as a

          7  hold- over since January 7, 2004.

          8                 Mr. Steven Byrns, who is a Mayoral

          9  appointee to the Landmarks Preservation Commission,

         10  a resident of the Bronx, filling the balance of a

         11  three- year term that expires on June 28, 2005,

         12  replacing Sharita Paulson (phonetic), who served as

         13  a hold over since June 29, 1999.

         14                 Monica Blum, a Manhattan resident,

         15  appointed by the Mayor to the Conflicts of Interest

         16  Board, to complete the remainder of a six year term,

         17  which expires on March 31st, replacing Bonito Romano

         18  (phonetic).

         19                 Council Member Bill Perkins is here,

         20  the Deputy Majority Leader, would you like to vote

         21  after you greet the -- oh, you're coming back? Okay,

         22  alright.

         23                 Just to be brief, the City Planning

         24  Commission has 13 Members, seven appointed by the

         25  Mayor, one by the Public Advocate, one by each of
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          2  the Borough Presidents.  Members receive an annual

          3  salary of $45,131.00.  The Planning Commission is

          4  responsible for the long- range planning to ensure

          5  orderly growth and future development in the City.

          6  They assist in developing the ten- year capital

          7  plan, they prepare and modify the zoning

          8  resolutions, they authorize acquisition by the City

          9  of office space and oversees the environmental

         10  reviews required under State law.  Okay, yes, we'll

         11  do one at a time.  So, Ms. Cavaluzzi, we would like

         12  you to raise your right hand to be sworn in.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Do you

         14  solemnly swear and affirm the testimony you're about

         15  to give the Committee is the truth and the whole

         16  truth?  Please state your name for the record.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Can you --

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Press the

         19  button.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: If the red light

         21  is off --

         22                 MS. CAVALUZZI: I'm sorry.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  -- Then the --

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: That's

         25  okay.
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          2                 MS. CAVALUZZI: Angela Roberts

          3  Cavaluzzi.

          4                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

          5  She's sworn in.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.  The

          7  mic's are counter-intuitive, so when the red light's

          8  off --

          9                 MS. CAVALUZZI: We have the same thing

         10  at the Commission.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Oh, okay.  Do

         12  you have an opening statement Ms. Cavaluzzi?

         13                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Yes, I do, if that's

         14  okay, I know you're short for time.  I did want to

         15  thank the Chair, Chair Comrie and Council Members.

         16  I just wanted to say that I'm very honored to have

         17  the opportunity to continue to serve on the City

         18  Planning Commission, and I appreciate your

         19  consideration.

         20                 I also wanted to take the opportunity

         21  to express my gratitude to Manhattan Borough

         22  President C. Virginia Fields, for re- appointing me

         23  to this important position.  I have served on the

         24  Commission for four and a half years and it has

         25  flown by. It seems like a short time ago I was
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          2  before you, and in planning terms, it is a very

          3  short time, particularly when many large scale plans

          4  that we have approved in the last four years, or may

          5  approve, do not have a projected build out for 20 to

          6  30 years into the future.  Hopefully, we will be

          7  here to see some of our biggest efforts completed.

          8                 But, there are plans and rezonings

          9  that the Commission and the Council have approved

         10  over the last four years, or will approve shortly,

         11  that we will see immediately results and we can all

         12  be proud of.  For instance, Lower Density Growth

         13  Management Community Facility text changes,

         14  Frederick Douglas Boulevard and East Harlem

         15  rezonings and other neighborhood rezonings in

         16  Manhattan, Queens, Staten Island, Brooklyn and the

         17  Bronx, and many other proposals by private

         18  applicants for residential projects, affordable

         19  housing and commercial office.

         20                 I'm proud to add my voice and

         21  expertise to these projects and encourage

         22  modifications, when necessary, to promote better

         23  planning, appropriate development, extraordinary

         24  architecture and ample open space.  I believe that

         25  I've made a difference and I will continue to help
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          2  to balance the needs of our communities with the

          3  needs of the entire City.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you Ms.

          5  Cavaluzzi.  Can we get a copy of that, if you don't

          6  mind?

          7                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Yes, certainly.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.  Any

          9  questions for Ms. Cavaluzzi?  We've been joined by

         10  Council Member Provenzano from the Bronx.  Right,

         11  Ms. Cavaluzzi's being re- appointed to the City

         12  Planning Commission.  I understand that, from your

         13  resume', that you worked here at the City Council as

         14  a Project Manager for Land Use Division?

         15                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Yes I did.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  And three people

         17  today reminded me that you worked here, and they

         18  thought that your work here was exemplary, and that

         19  your work on the City Planning Commission has been

         20  exemplary as a result of you working here --

         21                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  -- It definitely

         22  helped, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Oh, okay.  See,

         24  you were supposed to say yes then, so that they

         25  could feel good about what they're still doing here
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          2  in the Land Use Division, but -- I'm stalling

          3  because I know Members are still looking -- oh, you

          4  do? Good, alright.  Council Member Katz, who is the

          5  Chair of our Land Use Committee.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Good morning,

          7  and yes, you have some good friends here at the City

          8  Council.  I know that we got a great recommendation

          9  from the Director of our Land Use Division, Gail

         10  Benjamin, as well --

         11                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  -- I appreciate that

         12   --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I have a

         14  question,  In your answers you talk about the work

         15  that the Council does with the City Planning

         16  Commission, like the adult use text change and the

         17  community facilities law change, which really was a

         18  great collaboration of the Administration and the

         19  Council.  Do you have ideas for further proposals

         20  that you think would be a good collaboration between

         21  the Council and the Administration?

         22                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Well, the one thing I

         23  was thinking of, as I think it would be one of the

         24  questions which --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can you talk --
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          2                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  -- Dealt with

          3  obstacles, and I think one thing we should think

          4  about, since there are issues now related to term

          5  limits and changes of Administration, I think

          6  something the Council and the Department and

          7  Commission could do, is to look at creating a plan,

          8  more of a broad, long- term plan for the City, with,

          9  you know, just a certain number of principals that

         10  we could look at for traffic and transportation and

         11  greenway.

         12                 I mean, many of the planning groups,

         13  like RPA and others, have sort of looked at the

         14  regional planning ideas, and it might be something

         15  that we could do together and pick out certain

         16  points that we want to address, and then have

         17  something of more of a long- term plan that looks at

         18  maybe even our manufacturing areas.  Because all

         19  these issues always come up of when we rezone

         20  certain areas that were manufacturing, well, how

         21  much manufacturing do we have left?  So, it might be

         22  something that we could look at as something that

         23  more of a long- term plan that we could do, and that

         24  way it would be something that we could continue on

         25  through different Administrations.
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          2                 For instance, we did the waterfront

          3  rezoning text amendment several years ago, even

          4  before I was on the Commission, but I think the

          5  principle, the idea of opening up the waterfront and

          6  making it more public, we all now today use that as

          7  the basis for any development we see on the

          8  waterfront.  So, just those general type of ideas

          9  that we could then carry on and sort of judge

         10  developments that come before us, that we could

         11  weigh whether it's giving us enough public access to

         12  the waterfront, or if there's enough infrastructure.

         13  Just like in Staten Island, we've had the issue of

         14  the infrastructure.  Can it support the amount of

         15  density that we may be asking of that Borough.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So, it sounds

         17  like more the City- wide issues --

         18                 MS. CAVALUZZI: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  -- Are probably

         20  best suited for the collaboration between the

         21  Council and the Administration. I heard you talk

         22  about industrial jobs.  I assume that you look

         23  favorable, just on the cursory, on the industrial

         24  retention zoning areas?

         25                 MS. CAVALUZZI: Right, I think --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I mean --

          3                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  -- That's something

          4  that's important.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  --  That's a

          6  big issue with Hunt's Point.

          7                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  -- That's important

          8  that we need. Oh, I'm sorry.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Yes, that was a

         10  huge issue and the rezoning that we just did for

         11  Hunter's Point, and as you know, there is a lot of

         12  advocates discussing the industrial retention zoning

         13  areas, as overlays for existing zoning areas.

         14                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Right.  I think

         15  that's something that we should look at because I

         16  think we've had this issue where we, you know, the

         17  manufacturing areas, if you allow residential, if

         18  you allow retail, you know, that will be, the areas

         19  will become more marketable and they may be forced

         20  out.  So, I think you have to look at areas that you

         21  want to encourage manufacturing and where those will

         22  be.  That's part of the, of planning those areas.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Final question.

         24    The Community Facilities law that we did just do

         25  in collaboration, your view would be that that might
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          2  be a first step in how we can look at the community

          3  facilities' changes in the future?

          4                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Right.  We had talked

          5  about at the Commission, the Department, and I know

          6  several communities have talked about looking

          7  farther into the bulk issues related to community

          8  facilities, and one of the things that -- and some

          9  of the zoning areas, community facilities, get more

         10  bulk, more FAR of square footage than other uses.

         11                 So, it's something we should look at.

         12    It's a concern that, particularly in Manhattan,

         13  people have, in residential neighborhoods.  I think

         14  the issue's in Queens as well.  But, I think it's

         15  something that we always have to weigh and balance

         16  those community facilities, like hospitals and

         17  schools and universities that we need.  So, I think

         18  it's going to be a balance.  It might be difficult

         19  to tackle.  But, you know, it's something we should

         20  look at.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you.  I

         22  think I'm done stalling Mr. Chair, right?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  No, you weren't

         24  stalling.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I appreciate
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          2  it.  You, you actually come with very high

          3  recommendations and we've looked, we've enjoyed

          4  working with you and the City Planning Commission on

          5  the Land Use Committee, so I thank you for being

          6  here today.

          7                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Thank you Council

          8  Member.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         10  Provenzano has a question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  And we've been

         14  joined by Minority Leader James Oddo, from Staten

         15  Island.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  My

         17  district in the Bronx --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  -- And Majority

         19  Leader Joel Rivera from the Bronx.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  My

         21  district in the Bronx has also been before the City

         22  Planning and also, I think, just this past week, it

         23  was before the City Planning Commission for

         24  rezoning, and we have the same problem that they

         25  have in Staten Island, and that's been moving along,
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          2  kudos to Department of City Planning, who has been

          3  fantastic.

          4                 But, my question to you, and it's, I

          5  mean, you happen to be sitting in the seat, and so

          6  it will be personal to you, but it suddenly occurred

          7  to me as we, you know, we always have folks like

          8  yourself come before this Committee, and many of

          9  them, like yourself, are re- appointments.  The

         10  questions are always basically the same.  What do

         11  you think is important to the Commission, whatever

         12  Commission you're re- applying for, or what would

         13  you do to change it, and we always get, you know all

         14  these fantastic responses.  Now, you've been on the

         15  Commission since 1999?

         16                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Yes, well the,

         17  January 2000, so it's exactly --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  -- Okay.

         19  So, what I'm sitting here thinking is, we get all

         20  these great ideas from folks that are sitting there

         21  and then they go back on the Commission and nothing

         22  happens.  What is it that you could do, in reality,

         23  once you get re- appointed, to make some of these

         24  things happen that you think would be good ideas or

         25  changes?  Is there actually a process for doing
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          2  those kinds of things?

          3                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Well, I think it

          4  really depends on the Chair of the Commission, and I

          5  think Amanda Burden is very open to the ideas of the

          6  other Commissioners and she also includes us on many

          7  items that go through the Commission at the, you

          8  know, the Department level and prior to it coming

          9  before us.

         10                 So, I think we have the opportunity

         11  to do that with this Chair.  So, I would definitely

         12  bring back the ideas that sort of you've asked me

         13  questions and have actually made me think more about

         14  the long- term issues and I will definitely mention

         15  it to her and, hopefully, something like that can be

         16  done.

         17                 We have, in the past, from site

         18  visits that we go on, we encourage, like, for

         19  instance, Staten Island, when I first came on the

         20  Commission, we went to visits and she was a

         21  Commissioner at that time rather than a Chair, and

         22  both she and I brought back our concerns to the

         23  department about -- because both of our experiences

         24  in planning, the unacceptable development that was

         25  occurring in Staten Island with sidewalks, no
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          2  sidewalks, or houses facing the backs of public

          3  streets.  So, we feel like we did help a lot in

          4  encouraging, as others did, that have the issues on

          5  Staten Island, but we do think we were one of those

          6  voices.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Well,

          8  that's nice to hear.  I also share your feelings

          9  about Amanda.  I think she's doing a fantastic job.

         10  Thank you and congratulations.

         11                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         13  Reyna has a question.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you Mr.

         15  Chair.  Good morning --

         16                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Good morning.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: -- Ms. --

         18                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  -- Cavaluzzi.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:   -- Cavaluzzi.

         20                 MS. CAVALUZZI: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I didn't want

         22  to mispronounce it.

         23                 MS. CAVALUZZI: That's okay.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Ms. Cavaluzzi,

         25  I wanted to just find a way where you can express
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          2  your professional opinion on the 197A Plan process,

          3  and does it, in fact, once its reached it's final

          4  point, the Commission, does the Commission allow the

          5  input of the community to reflect what will

          6  essentially be voted on?

          7                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  I think in most cases

          8  it does.  I mean, we have had an issue, I think,

          9  that's coming up on Red Hook, where there is a big

         10  concern with development that maybe does not reflect

         11  the 197A in that area, or what the community, and I

         12  think in that regard, I think, you know, we've,

         13  again, will have to weigh the needs of the

         14  community, and many in the community are for the

         15  project.  So, again, I think that will be something

         16  we have to look at, the community versus the needs

         17  of the City.

         18                 I think 197A's, you know, in terms of

         19  creating the vision for that community is very

         20  important to have, so that most of the time the

         21  community can have one voice in saying what they

         22  need and what they want for their community.  But,

         23  there are instances where I don't think it can be

         24  followed to -- and that's why it's usually a 197A

         25  Plan, and there are not, you know, they have to be
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          2  the follow- up actions, which have happened and are

          3  happening on some of the 197A's, where there are

          4  zoning changes, and that's when you really create

          5  the meat for those, those type of plans.  They have

          6  to have the follow-up actions related to the

          7  rezoning.  But, there are instances where it may not

          8  totally conform and there were unforeseen, you know,

          9  circumstances, and the City has to grow, so we have

         10  to then weigh those.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And as you can

         12  imagine, I mention and requested your opinion

         13  because we will be working with the City Planning

         14  Commission on the Williamsburg- Greenpoint rezoning

         15   --

         16                 MS. CAVALUZZI: Right, right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: -- And right

         18  now, there are certain groups of community

         19  coalitions that are already giving their own

         20  opinions, in the negative fashion, that, you know,

         21  the City Planning Commission did not take into

         22  regards most of the 197A Plan process, that the

         23  community had input --

         24                 MS. CAVALUZZI: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- And

                                                            20

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  considering the many years that went into this plan,

          3  I think there's going to be a lot of resentment.

          4  How can the Commission just, aside from the public

          5  process where you bring the plan in and you finalize

          6  by making a presentation to the community, where

          7  they will be allowed to give input, do you feel

          8  that, you know, the concerns such as other than

          9  waterfront access, other than beautification of the

         10  waterfront, other than water taxis, that there will

         11  be -- because I notice that you mentioned affordable

         12  housing over and over again, that there will be an

         13  opportunity for the City Planning Commission to take

         14  into consideration affordable housing and how to be

         15  able to influence the process to allow affordable

         16  housing to be built?

         17                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Well, I think one of

         18  the things that this Administration and Department

         19  has done on most of the rezonings, the large- scale

         20  rezonings, like the Brooklyn Downtown rezoning, or

         21  the Park Slope rezoning, have looked at affordable

         22  housing.

         23                 I think the issue becomes, you know,

         24  how much money is available.  But, there are, there

         25  are, HPD is always included in part of these
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          2  rezonings to look at that.  I believe they're, you

          3  know, looking at things at Hudson Yards.  So, each

          4  rezoning that comes forward, I think one of the

          5  major priorities is affordable housing and how to

          6  include that in those plans, and I'm sure that will

          7  occur too on Greenpoint and Williamsburg.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I appreciate

          9  your input and what you have enabled to bring to the

         10  table as far as your City Planning experience and

         11  leadership, and I look forward to continue working

         12  with you.

         13                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Thank you, thank you

         14  very much.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         17  Reyna actually asked the question I was going to ask

         18  regarding the 197A Plans and do you consider them an

         19  effective tool for community planning.  But, you

         20  mentioned in your statement, and I just wanted to

         21  ask you from that point of view, that in some cases

         22  community boards haven't brought their plans

         23  forward.  Do you feel as a Planning Commissioner,

         24  what do you think your obligation and role would be

         25  in communities that have not brought their plans
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          2  forward in light of the fact that there is so much

          3   -- communities are changing in such a way that 197

          4  or at least future planning has to be done for

          5  particular communities?

          6                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Right.  I think the

          7  issue also goes back to, unfortunately, budget cuts,

          8  because a lot of the, some of the planning was the

          9  Borough Presidents were given money to have, you

         10  know, to have technical, give technical assistance

         11  to community boards on their planning efforts, and

         12  with the cutbacks at the Borough President level,

         13  and things like that, and the staff level, it's been

         14  difficult for them to give the technical assistance

         15  that's probably needed by the communities.

         16                 Understanding the community boards

         17  have a budget, I think the issue becomes, you know,

         18  really, how many people they have to devote the time

         19  to do it, and many community boards are volunteers.

         20  I mean, I always encourage the community boards to

         21  hire consultants because they can focus on it, they

         22  can do the work, they can make a continuous effort.

         23  I think the ones that have done that, it's helpful.

         24  But, then again, it's the issue of raising money for

         25  that.  Actually, some community boards have done
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          2  that, gone out and raised money for a consultant to

          3  do the planning.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  You may know

          5  that our Council Member Minority Leader Oddo fought

          6  to get some money into the City Planning budget this

          7  year to actually do planning.  So, I'm going to

          8  defer that to him.  Was that City Planning? Yes.

          9  I'm sorry, she's making me think my coffee hasn't

         10  kicked in yet. Actually, yes, Council Member

         11  Provenzano was involved as well in the discussions

         12  and steering the fight to make sure that the money

         13  wasn't reallocated at the last minute.  But, you do

         14  have some help coming --

         15                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  -- Thank you --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  -- And we,

         17  hopefully, intend to make sure that you get more,

         18  because the need for planning vis- a- vis, changing

         19  communities and the contractual zoning and making

         20  sure that we protect residential historic

         21  continuity. And, also the need to change our, the

         22  fact that we lost so many manufacturing jobs, that

         23  we have a lot of large manufacturing type warehouses

         24  that need to be re- used, requires that we really do

         25  more advanced planning and more planning with the
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          2  community involvement and making sure that whatever

          3  197A Plans are, are really in touch with the needs

          4  of the City of the future, as opposed to, you know,

          5  individual concerns.  But, we could do both if we do

          6  it well.

          7                 I'll turn this over to Council Member

          8  Oddo, and then I'll ask a couple of, one other

          9  question, but we really have to move on because

         10  we're -- oh, Council Member Fidler too, oh, okay.

         11  We got to -- I'll allow Council Member Oddo and then

         12  Council Member Fidler and then one quick question

         13  from Council Member Provenzano, but we really have

         14  to move quickly.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Hell have no

         16  fury like a politician who doesn't get, you know, do

         17  credit.  So, very quickly, Provenzano, Avella, Katz,

         18  Lanza, McMahon, Sanders, Weprin, Vallone, Jr.,

         19  Gentile, Gallagher, DeBlasio, Felder, Recchia,

         20  James, Gennaro, Fidler, Addabbo, and Koppell signed

         21  on to that cause of getting City Planning more

         22  money, Mr. Chairman-

         23                 MS. CAVALUZZI: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  -- Angela,

         25  welcome back and welcome home to the City Council.

                                                            25

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  I have one quick question, what's the nickname of

          3  the Mississippi State University football team?

          4                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Bulldogs.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Very good.

          6  That wasn't a test, I just wanted to know.  I have a

          7  quick question.  Council Member Lanza has a bill

          8  that's kicking around the Council that says,

          9  essentially, that the moment City Planning

         10  certifies, let's say a downzoning application, from

         11  that point on, any construction, any building that

         12  would be prohibited once that certification becomes

         13  complete, is actually prohibited the moment of the

         14  certification.

         15                 Right now, the Council, in a couple

         16  of hours, will be passing the Staten Island Growth

         17  Management Task Force Rules, and what we've seen

         18  over the last three days on Staten Island is this

         19  race to beat the clock.  They are dumping

         20  foundations to get grandfathered in all across

         21  Staten Island.  We saw it when we did the Borough

         22  Presidents downzonings.

         23                 One of the ways that we think we can

         24  fight that, and Council Member McMahon and Lanza and

         25  I, is this notion of the moment City Planning
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          2  certifies, if we're going to stop building of

          3  attached houses in that area, it should happen then,

          4  to take away this beat the clock notion.  Is that

          5  something that you could support? Or if you have

          6  some valid criticisms of that bill, I'd like to know

          7  them.

          8                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Well, I think it's an

          9  interesting idea because ULURP has a time clock,

         10  it's not like an unending open process.  So, I think

         11  that actually is a good idea.  I haven't really

         12  thought about it.  I haven't heard about the bill,

         13  but I think that that could work.

         14                 I think, in one way, it's good

         15  because they, the developers do not necessarily know

         16  when it's going to be certified.  So, but once they,

         17  the clock has started, they know they have the nine

         18  months.  So, it would kind of give a little bit of

         19  period where they couldn't get organized, basically,

         20  to put those foundations in.  So, I think that's a

         21  good point.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I just want to

         23  thank you and everybody on the Commission.  Today is

         24  really a historic day for Staten Island and the

         25  template for the communities of all those Members
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          2  that I mentioned, that they could use to help their

          3  community, and I want to thank Chair Burden, when

          4  you see her, thank her again --

          5                 MS. CAVALUZZI: Yes I will --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  -- And all the

          7  folks for being so cooperative.  So, thank you and

          8  good luck.

          9                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         11  Fidler.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Just really

         13  following along the lines of what Council Member

         14  Oddo said.  I am a co sponsor of that legislation

         15  with Council Member Lanza, and I think it would be

         16  an awfully good idea.  I think the good work of the

         17  City Planning Commission is often frustrated by

         18  people who are beating the ULURP clock.

         19                 Again, not by way of question, but

         20  because I do this every time I see a City Planning

         21  Commissioner before the Council.  The communities in

         22  Southern Brooklyn, particularly, those that I

         23  represent, Sheepshead Bay, Plum Beach, Canarsie,

         24  Georgetown, are in desperate need of a downzoning.

         25  That's why we were very, very happy to add extra
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          2  staffing to City Planning.

          3                 We're finding every little slit of

          4  land being overconstructed and what was appropriate

          5  in other parts of the City, where we desperately

          6  need to build housing, are choking other

          7  neighborhoods, and I just hope that as we go

          8  forward, you'll keep that in mind when you hear

          9  Sheepshead Bay, Plum Beach, Canarsie, Georgetown, as

         10  they come forward before the City Planning

         11  Commission, and that we get that work done.

         12                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Certainly will, thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you

         15  Council Member Fidler.  Ms. Cavaluzzi, you're a

         16  Board Member At Large at your co- op board --

         17                 MS. CAVALUZZI: Yes I am --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  -- And you know

         19  that service on the Board is permissible, providing

         20  that you recuse yourself from consideration of any

         21  matter involving the City, and that as a Member of

         22  the Planning Commission, from any consideration of

         23  any matter involving the Co- Op Board with the City.

         24    I'm sure you're familiar with those restrictions

         25  and you do intend to abide by them?
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          2                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Yes I do.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  And I'm sure you

          4  have so far. So, it's been --

          5                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Yes I have --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  -- Again, you've

          7  been well recommended, and we will be voting in a

          8  few minutes, after we hear from the other

          9  candidates.  So, you're welcome to stay.  At this

         10  time --

         11                 MS. CAVALUZZI: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  -- Thank you,

         13  thank you for your desire to serve the City.  I

         14  would hope that, at some point, we get to sit down

         15  with the entire Planning Commission, maybe due to

         16  auspices of Councilman Oddo, just to take about how

         17  we do future planning and all of those items that

         18  all the Members talked about today.  It's been an

         19  interesting discussion, something that I think it

         20  would help if the Council could sit down with the

         21  entire Commission at one point.

         22                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Oh, that would be,

         23  that would be great.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Mr. Tzanides,

         25  oh, before, Angela Davis was here from the Mayor's
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          2  Office, for appointment to the Commission, she snuck

          3  out Patrick?  Okay, well, I just wanted to mention

          4  that she was here.  Mr. Glenn Newman, the Chair of

          5  the Tax Commission is here also, and we will be

          6  hearing from Jennifer Raab in a few minutes.  But, I

          7  just wanted to mention that she's here, so she can

          8  have a little understanding that we're going to move

          9  forward.  Right now, we're going to ask Mr. Tzanides

         10  to raise your right hand for your re- appointment to

         11  the Tax Commission.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Do you

         13  solemnly swear and affirm the testimony you're about

         14  to give the Committee is the truth and the whole

         15  truth?

         16                 MR. TZANIDES:  I do.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Please state

         18  your name for the record.

         19                 MR. TZANIDES:  Kirk Tzanides.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         21  Witness is sworn.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.  You

         23  have an opening statement sir?

         24                 MR. TZANIDES:  Briefly.  I'd like to,

         25  may it please the Committee, my name is Kirk
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          2  Tzanides, and I am happy to be here to answer any of

          3  your questions.  I am a candidate for re-

          4  appointment to the Tax Commission.  I have served in

          5  that capacity since April of 2001, and I believe

          6  that I have provided, in my capacity, a fair and

          7  equitable and accessible forum where tax payers can,

          8  aggrieved tax payers, can obtain a fair hearing on

          9  their tax, property tax appeals.  Hopefully, with

         10  your support today, I will be able to continue my

         11  service into the future to the citizens of this

         12  great City.  If you have any questions, I'm prepared

         13  to answer them at this time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.

         15  Council Member Katz, did you have a question for Mr.

         16  Tzanides?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  No, did I?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  No, no, you

         19  didn't.  Sorry, that was someone else.  Okay, does

         20  anyone have any questions for Mr. Tzanides, who is

         21  being re-appointed to the Tax Commission? Did

         22  everybody burn themselves out on City Planning?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Always go last

         24  when you're up for appointment, never go first.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member
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          2  Oddo.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I just would, I

          4  don't have a question, I'd just like to make a

          5  comment for the record, so my colleagues know that

          6  I'm very familiar with this candidate from his days

          7  when he was involved in the Community Board, and

          8  he's a gentleman and it was a pleasure working with

          9  him in that capacity.  I think by reviewing the

         10  file, he's done a great job on the Tax Commission

         11  and I hope all my colleagues will reflect that with

         12  an aye vote, and welcome to City Hall again.  Good

         13  to see you and your lovely wife, who I don't know

         14  where she went --

         15                 MR. TZANIDES: She's right there --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODD:  -- Good to see

         17  you.

         18                 MR. TZANIDES:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  What did you say

         20  to her?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I said hello to

         22  his lovely wife.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  -- Am I not

         25  supposed to say that?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  No, that's fine.

          3  I just wanted to make sure --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, lovely's

          5  okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, while we

          7  have Mr. Newman here from the Tax Commission and Mr.

          8  Tzanides, what do you think -- you know, I've been

          9  working with Commissioner Stark on making the form

         10  simpler and doing, trying to make it more counter-

         11  intuitive in having actually forums for the

         12  community. But, what else do you think the Tax

         13  Commission can do to have a better rate of response

         14  on delinquent tax payers?

         15                 MR. NEWMAN:  Thank you Councilman

         16  Comrie.  We actually had a meeting yesterday on

         17  certain real property income and expense forms that

         18  the Finance Department has put out, including an EZ

         19  form, simplified filings.  We in the Tax Commission

         20  put out a Tax Commission application for correction

         21  in an easy format for homeowners.  Anyone with a

         22  class one property make it much simpler to file.

         23                 We've also held information sessions

         24  in every borough, advising people of not only how to

         25  file the case, but what proof they need to bring in
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          2  to establish their entitlement to a reduction.  We

          3  feel very strongly that the more people know about

          4  the assessment process and the appeal process, the

          5  better the process will work and the better service

          6  we can provide.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.  I've

          8  know that, I've been, I've had a great relationship

          9  with the outreach staff on financing.  Commissioner

         10  Stark has been very responsive in trying to make it

         11  easy, and I just want to appreciate the Commission

         12  for working along with her.  Mr. Tzanides, I want to

         13  thank you for wanting to continue to serve and thank

         14  your wife also, for allowing him to serve.  Being in

         15  City service, we have to thank our better halves for

         16  allowing us to continue in City service.  So --

         17                 MR. TZANIDES: Thank you --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         19  Provenzano has a question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  In

         21  reading the questions and responses that, well, the

         22  responses basically that you gave, my questions is

         23  basically similar to what I asked Angela.  I see

         24  that one question specifically, the question was,

         25  since every agency must do more with less, what
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          2  steps, in your opinion, should the Tax Commission be

          3  taking now to increase productivity?  And I'm sure

          4  you remember that question?

          5                 MR. TZANIDES:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  And your

          7  answer was great.  You suggested your ideas on what

          8  you thought could happen or should happen.  Again,

          9  the question is, what did you do, or what will you

         10  do to ensure that that happens?  You are also a re

         11  appointment?

         12                 MR. TZANIDES:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Okay, so

         14  again, my question is, you've been there, you have

         15  some great ideas.  Why haven't they been followed

         16  through on when you were there, and now that you're

         17  being re- appointed, what would you do to see that

         18  that happens?

         19                 MR. TZANIDES:  Well, I'm glad to

         20  report that since I've been there, there have been

         21  many changes for the better for both the Commission

         22  and the public that it serves.  Forms have gotten

         23  easier.  We, as Commissioners, work better with each

         24  other.  We meet more regularly.  We undergo more

         25  training, more educational seminars.  These were all
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          2  ideas and all matters that, through my time at the

          3  Commission, these recommendations by the

          4  Commissioners, as well as the President and the

          5  General Counsel, have been implemented and are

          6  working well.  There's more to do.

          7                 There are resources out there in the

          8  public domain that can help us obtain more

          9  information on properties, which, for example, we

         10  are doing.  It used to be when I first started, as a

         11  part- time Commissioner, I would have to go to the

         12  books, we call it, which was, we would have to look

         13  for comparable sales in these computer print- out

         14  spreadsheets, which was very time consuming, while

         15  the attorneys or the representatives who would

         16  appear before us can plug in an address in a

         17  computer at his office, and the computer would spit

         18  out all the comparable sales and information,

         19  property information, basically at the split, in

         20  split seconds.

         21                 So, these are some of the

         22  improvements that are happening at the Commission.

         23  The demystification of the process is very critical,

         24  the transparency of the process.  Although the, we

         25  are not, we're a separate agency from the Department
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          2  of Finance, and I think, over the last couple of

          3  years, especially with the Assessor's scandal at

          4  that agency, it has affected the Commission as well,

          5  because people need to know that there is a fair and

          6  equitable forum and a transparent forum, and they

          7  have to understand the rules, they have to

          8  understand what the statute requires and providing,

          9  in having a case heard.

         10                 For example, now, again, with the

         11  help of our new President, we, we are less inclined

         12  to dismiss cases on non jurisdictional issues,

         13  wherein the past, merit review, you would have to go

         14  through a stringent protocol and go through the

         15  application, and if there was some information that

         16  was not present, the application may not have gotten

         17  to the merit stage.

         18                 We have an open forum, which allows

         19  more merit review today than three years ago, for

         20  example.  So, these are some of the matters that are

         21  important to me, have been important to me, and to

         22  the Commission, and I am glad to see that they are,

         23  that they are happening.  Education --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: But, if I

         25  can, if I can --
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          2                 MR. TZANIDES: Yes. --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  -- Just

          4  interrupt a minute.  One of the comments you made,

          5  and I agree with you, is that certain information

          6  obtained by the Department of Finance remains

          7  inaccessible to the Tax Commission.  Both the

          8  Department of Finance, as well as the Law

          9  Department, may review a particular case at

         10  different stages and the basis of their

         11  determination is not available to the Tax

         12  Commission, which creates problems, really big

         13  problems for you --

         14                 MR. TZANIDES: Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  -- So,

         16  what, you know, how do you see --

         17                 MR. TZANIDES:   My understanding --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  -- That,

         19  okay --

         20                 MR. TZANIDES: My understanding is,

         21  and again, as a quasi- judicial hearing officer,

         22  principally, my role is to hear and determine cases

         23  based on the record and evidence that is presented

         24  before me.  However, the policy of the Commission,

         25  and I, as a whole, and through its President and
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          2  general counsel, they have been working very closely

          3  with the Department of Finance to interface computer

          4  systems, so that the information that the Department

          5  of Finance has is now more accessible, not only to

          6  the Commission, but to the tax payer.

          7                 It used to be that a tax payer would

          8  get a tax assessment notice in the mail, and many of

          9  the cases were based on the fact that people just

         10  didn't understand how to read the tax bill, or how

         11  their assessments were made or determined. Again,

         12  with the help of the Commission and the Department

         13  of Finance, that is getting much better.  We now

         14  know, even at the Commission, more than we ever did

         15  before, what goes into an assessor's mind in

         16  determining an assessment.  Where, in the past, we

         17  may not have had that information.

         18                 So, that is something that I think we

         19  need to do more of and we are doing more of.  We're

         20  cognizant of that.  It's not just the Department of

         21  Finance, there are other agencies, for example,

         22  housing.  Landlords are required to submit and file

         23  certified rent rolls every year.  If we have access

         24  to some of that public information, that would help

         25  us in making better determinations and
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          2  determinations based more on, on critical data.

          3                 So, that's the process that we need

          4  to continue to do.  And, what I was going to say

          5  before in terms of, in terms of building confidence

          6  with, for the public, the outreach and the

          7  education, thanks to the President, who encourages

          8  all the Commission staff and the Commissioners, we

          9  reach out to community boards, I speak at different

         10  community events, just to advise and teach the

         11  public that the Commission actually exists and to

         12  explain the role and education and information is

         13  power --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: You're the

         15  friend not the enemy --

         16                 MR. TZANIDES: Correct, correct, and

         17  with --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  -- And --

         19                 MR. TZANIDES:   Yes, and with a

         20  million tax lots, we get over 40 some odd thousand

         21  applications a year, and not that I'm asking for

         22  more, but it's really less than one percent of

         23  assessments are appealed on an annual basis.  So,

         24  and I think that has, part of that is because the

         25  public does not know, and that's what we're trying
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          2  to do, is to educate the public --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Also I

          4  don't want to belabor this, I know we're all in a

          5  hurry, but it was also moved out of the borough.

          6                 MR. TZANIDES:  Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  And I

          8  think that's a big problem --

          9                 MR. TZANIDES: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  -- For

         11  folks too, like --

         12                 MR. TZANIDES:  -- All --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  You used

         14  to be able to go to the Bronx, wherever it was, now

         15  you don't do that anymore.

         16                 MR. TZANIDES:  Although we do that,

         17  we do that --

         18                 MR. NEWMAN: We do schedule hearings

         19  in every borough --

         20                 MR. TZANIDES: Yes.

         21                 MR. NEWMAN:  -- If the tax payer

         22  requests it.  We, it's one of those things that we

         23  do promote and let people know that if they want a

         24  hearing in any of the boroughs, we will be there.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Okay,
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          2  that's good.

          3                 MR. TZANIDES:  Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you Mr.

          7  Tzanides. We're going to move on to Mr. Steven Byrns

          8  from the Landmarks, sorry, going to be re- appointed

          9  to the Landmarks -- appointed, it's a new

         10  appointment to the Landmarks Preservation

         11  Commission. Can you raise your right hand and be

         12  sworn in Mr. Byrns?

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Do you

         14  solemnly swear and affirm the testimony you're about

         15  to give the Committee is the truth, the whole truth

         16  and nothing but the truth?

         17                 MR. BYRNS:  I do.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Please state

         19  your name for the record.

         20                 MR. BYRNS:  Steven Byrns.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Witness is

         22  sworn.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you Mr.

         24  Byrns.  This is going to be your first opportunity

         25  to serve on the Landmarks Preservation Commission.
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          2  Perhaps you can provide the Committee with your, or

          3  inform the Committee of your understanding of the

          4  functions and duties of a Commissioner and why you

          5  would like to be appointed to the Landmarks

          6  Preservation Commission.

          7                 MR. BYRNS:  Well, the Commission is

          8  responsible for reviewing any alterations to

          9  buildings that are landmarked or to any new

         10  construction in landmark districts.  I am an

         11  architect myself.  I have very strong interest in

         12  both architecture and history, and I have seen a

         13  great deal of good that's come about because of

         14  Landmarks' protection and hope that that will

         15  continue in the City.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Have you

         17  appeared before the Committee in an capacity as an

         18  architect?

         19                 MR. BYRNS:  Yes I have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  We're all, yes,

         21  Councilman Fidler -- and when you appeared before

         22  them, were you successful in your request?

         23                 MR. BYRNS:  I always was successful,

         24  yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  You batted 100?
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          2                 MR. BYRNS:  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, and how do

          4  you feel about the experience of appearing before

          5  the Commission?

          6                 MR. BYRNS:  I think that it is, it's

          7  a very interesting experience that is characterized

          8  by often sort of certain things you have a

          9  prediction or a sense of how things will go.  But,

         10  also there's a great mysterious element that you

         11  have to think long and hard about in advance.  It's

         12  a very interesting intellectual exercise, as well as

         13  a design exercise, to try to work sympathetically

         14  and appropriately with interesting and historic

         15  architecture.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Your firm still

         17  does many projects with Landmarks.  Do you have

         18  advice -- there are currently active projects,

         19  actually, that your firm is engaged in that will be

         20  becoming before Landmarks, which you've advised our

         21  investigation staff about and you've advised the

         22  staff that you're a partner in charge for a number

         23  of these projects?

         24                 MR. BYRNS:  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, and you've
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          2  written to the Conflicts of Interest Board for

          3  guidance regarding your firm's activities and your

          4  position on the Commission.  Upon your receipt of

          5  the Board's response, will you share it with the

          6  Committee and abide by its ruling?

          7                 MR. BYRNS:  Absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  And your letter

          9  to the Board indicated that you would recuse

         10  yourself from all discussions or voting, both at the

         11  Commission and at your architecture firm, regarding

         12  projects current and in the future that may come

         13  before the Commission?

         14                 MR. BYRNS:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Is that your

         16  intention even before receiving this response from

         17  the Board?

         18                 MR. BYRNS:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.  This is

         20  just housekeeping for the record, so, excuse me for

         21   -- and is it also your intention not to serve as

         22  the partner in charge for projects that may come

         23  before the Commission that are, your firm is engaged

         24  in?

         25                 MR. BYRNS:  Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.  You've

          3  been advised by our staff that the City Charter does

          4  not allow you to receive compensation from your firm

          5  for these matters that require an appearance by

          6  anyone from your firm before the Commission.  So, if

          7  the Conflicts Board tells you that you will not be

          8  able to share in any fees earned by your firm, BKSK,

          9  just to be short, related to its representation of

         10  clients before the Commission, are you prepared to

         11  abide by this ruling?

         12                 Mr. BYRNS:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  You serve on the

         14  Board of Directors for two entities that interact

         15  with, or on occasion, also appear before the

         16  Commission.  To avoid any conflicts of interest,

         17  will you also recuse yourself both at the Commission

         18  and at those entities on matters that may come

         19  before the Commission?

         20                 MR. BYRNS:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  This sounds like

         22  a large part of your overall business though, I

         23  mean, how will this affect your income ability?

         24                 MR. BYRNS:  I will have to obviously

         25  put a lot more of my work, or all of my work that
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          2  does not tower (sic) Landmarks, and we do do a lot

          3  of work that is not LPC related.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.  Where's

          5  your firm located?  I'm sorry.

          6                 MR. BYRNS:  25th Street.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  And what other

          8  projects are you working on that are not Landmark

          9  type projects?

         10                 MR. BYRNS:  I'm working on a large

         11  residential project in Oklahoma City.  I'm working

         12  on a -- excuse me, I'm just sort of blanking out for

         13  a moment.  I'm working on a number of apartment

         14  renovations on the Upper East Side, various other

         15  projects as well.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So, you compete

         17  around the Country for work?

         18                 MR. BYRNS:  Yes.  Another project in

         19  Michigan. So, you know, we do do work out of State

         20   --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         22                 MR. BYRNS:  -- And in the suburbs as

         23  well.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, great.

         25  You know, I don't want you to lose 90 percent of
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          2  your income --

          3                 MR. BYRNS: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  -- Serving on

          5  the City --

          6                 MR. BYRNS: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I appreciate your

          8  desire to serve also.  My staff, my great

          9  investigation staff has brought to our attention

         10  that your partner has also, is also an architect,

         11  and does work before the Landmarks.  You have to

         12  recuse yourself from any knowledge of projects that

         13  may be coming up before them.  So, you wouldn't be

         14  able to give them any advanced headway or, you know,

         15  maintain strict confidentiality in terms of your

         16  knowledge of the projects as far as your partner's

         17  concerned also.  You prepared to do that?

         18                 MR. BYRNS:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Did I ask that

         20  correctly? Thank you.  Okay.  Council Member

         21  Provenzano, then Council Member Fidler and Council

         22  Member -- didn't you have your hand up?  No? Okay, I

         23  thought he had his hand up first.  Well, Council

         24  Member Provenzano has a first question -- oh,

         25  Fidler, I'm sorry, then Clarke.  Yes, some Members
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          2  have to vote because they have to leave, so Council

          3  Member Melinda Katz would like to vote now.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I vote aye,

          5  thank you very much Mr. Chair for the ability to do

          6  it now.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you

          8  Council Member. She voted aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  I

         10  actually don't have a question, but I do know Mr.

         11  Byrns quite well, and I just wanted to get that out

         12  there.  I think, Mr. Byrns had come to my office and

         13  we actually had to kind of twist his arm to get him

         14  to agree to serve on this position, and I think he

         15  would make an excellent candidate, particularly

         16  regarding his background.  He certainly has agreed

         17  to, and understands all of the facts in recusing

         18  himself.  I think he has a total understanding of

         19  that, because it was, a lot of the stuff was

         20  discussed before he even decided to, you know, take

         21  on this position.

         22                 And, you may, I don't know if anyone

         23  would raise the question, but there is a comment

         24  here that his name was withdrawn and then

         25  resubmitted, and that is part of the reason why.
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          2  But, I, he comes very highly recommended.  He's a

          3  Bronxite, although not exactly in my district.  I've

          4  tried to talk him into moving into my district.  So,

          5  I just wanted to put it out there that he is, comes

          6  highly recommended.  And, could I vote too? Okay, I

          7  vote yes on all.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

          9  Provenzano votes yes on all.  I popped out the room

         10  to vote in, I'm on Finance, I had to go in and vote.

         11    But, I do appreciate your comments and actually

         12  you're following my same concerns.

         13                 You know, we want people to be in

         14  City service and, you know, want you to be happy in

         15  the City service and you do have to, you have a lot

         16  of interest and lot of, that deal with Landmarks and

         17  we appreciate your desire to want to recuse yourself

         18  from those various concerns and interests to

         19  actually serve on the Committee.  I'm sure that you

         20  will make every effort to make sure that it's done

         21  professionally and properly and we do appreciate

         22  that.  Mrs. Raab would like -- Council Member Fidler

         23  first and then Clarke.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chairman.

                                                            51

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We've been joined

          3  by Council Member Sears from Queens and Council

          4  Member Christine Quinn from Manhattan.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Actually, Mr.

          6  Byrns, Chairperson Comrie did an extraordinarily

          7  good job of asking questions I was going to ask,

          8  having read your C.V. Here.  I just want to ask one

          9  more along those lines, and that is, so that I can

         10  get a full measure of the sacrifice that you're

         11  making by agreeing to work for the City of New York.

         12    What percentage of your firm's business deals with

         13  projects that are Landmark related?

         14                 MR. BYRNS:  I would say 20 to 25

         15  percent.  It's hard to say, but in that vicinity.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, that's

         17  quite a sacrifice.  So, I hope you find service in

         18  the Landmarks Preservation Commission is fulfilling

         19  as you figure --

         20                 MR. BYRNS: I do, too.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  -- You must

         22  think it will be. I just have one other question

         23  that it seems petty, but I, you know, I guess being

         24  in the business that I'm in, I always look at the

         25  personal section of the report that says voter
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          2  registration.  I see you last voted in November

          3  2002.  Any particular reason you took a pass on the

          4  2003 election?  I mean, you're, you seem so

          5  committed to working for our City, that you would

          6  miss voting in probably a couple of elections in

          7  2003?

          8                 MR. BYRNS:  I think probably because

          9  I don't remember probably speaks to a certain level

         10  of disengagement with, perhaps, certain issues I

         11  should be more knowledgeable about.  But, I, imagine

         12  I vote at least every even year, and I might miss a

         13  few odd years.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, I guess

         15  since we all here believe that 100 percent of

         16  politics is 90 percent local, maybe you ought to

         17  think about those odd years too --

         18                 MR. BYRNS: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  --

         20  Nonetheless, Council Member Provenzano spoke very

         21  highly of your involvement and your character, and

         22  you're certainly obviously willing to make a

         23  tremendous sacrifice on behalf of our City.  I think

         24  that speaks very, very highly of your candidacy.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.
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          2  Council Member Clarke.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you Mr.

          4  Chair.  Good morning Mr. Byrns.  Just wanted to ask

          5  a question regarding one of your responses to the

          6  question here in your response to the Council.  It

          7  was question number eight, where it asked whether

          8  you felt there was a need to make changes in the

          9  manner in which the designation process is handled,

         10  particularly regarding notification, timeliness, and

         11  the comprehensiveness of district designations.  You

         12  stated that you weren't well informed on this issue.

         13                 What I would ask is that you come up

         14  to speed. There are many communities like mine

         15  called Victorian Flatbush in Midwood, in the --

         16  excuse me -- Central Brooklyn part of the City,

         17  where community residents have come together in a

         18  very historic area, and there's been sort of a

         19  patchwork way of designating this community and it's

         20  really one big contiguous community.

         21                 They've not had, what I would call,

         22  expedited response to many of the applications that

         23  are currently before the Commission.  What's

         24  happening is, because these are older, many of these

         25  homes are over 100 years old, wood framed, they're
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          2  beginning to deteriorate.  We're beginning to see

          3  some encroachment of commercial entities on these

          4  properties.  So, there's an erosion.

          5                 I think that certainly a protocol

          6  should be put in place that at least once an

          7  application is brought to the attention of the

          8  Commission, that there be some sort of site visit,

          9  or something, so that people feel that they have at

         10  least the attention of the Commission.  There are

         11  many wonderful areas still left to be preserved in

         12  New York City, and that's an area that I think the

         13  Commission could really make a quantum leap in terms

         14  of helping citizens who want to preserve their

         15  communities. So, I really wanted to highlight that

         16  for you.

         17                 MR. BYRNS:  I completely agree, and

         18  once I know more about the process, I think being as

         19  swift footed as possible is very important.  I know

         20  of a couple of buildings in my own neck of the Bronx

         21  that are very significant that were destroyed in the

         22  last six months.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.

         24  Speaker Gifford Miller is here to vote, so with his

         25  schedule and about five press conferences, we'd like
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          2  the Speaker to vote now, so that he can continue to

          3  serve us as --

          4                 SPEAKER MILLER:  Aye.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.  Were

          6  you done Council Member Clarke?  Council Member

          7  Clarke, were you done? I'm sorry.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Yes I was Mr.

          9  Chair, thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Alright, thank

         11  you.  Okay, before I forget, I want to mention that

         12  our investigation staff has been very astute and

         13  very competent and professional.  As a result of

         14  their professional demeanor and their ability to get

         15  it done right, Mr. Charles Davis, who has been

         16  Assistant Investigator has now been promoted to

         17  Senior Investigator, and I want to take all the

         18  credit for that, even though I don't deserve any,

         19  but, congratulations  Yes, at this time, Ms.

         20  Jennifer Raab is here and she'd like to speak on

         21  behalf of Mr. Byrns.  So, you can sit, or if you'd

         22  like to stand right there.

         23                 MS. RAAB:  Good morning.  Thank you

         24  for the opportunity to be here today.  My name is

         25  Jennifer Raab.  I'm presently President of Hunter
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          2  College, where we are the lucky stewards of three

          3  historic buildings.  But, before becoming President

          4  of Hunter College, I had the great privilege of

          5  serving this City for seven years as the Chairman of

          6  the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

          7                 I am also a Bronx resident and I'm

          8  here today to urge the Committee to approve Mr.

          9  Byrns as the new Bronx representative on the

         10  Landmarks Preservation Commission.  He is truly a

         11  first- rate choice.  He is an extraordinarily

         12  talented architect.  I had the opportunity to have

         13  him before me for years at the Commission, and he

         14  knows how to make a compelling presentation and to

         15  serve his clients, as well as serving this City.

         16                 He has done enormous amounts of work

         17  in the Bronx and through this City that show the

         18  thing that you need to be a great Landmarks

         19  Commissioner, and that's a sense of balance.  The

         20  ability to protect and really restore historic

         21  property, but adapt that property for modern needs.

         22  That perspective is what the Commission needs to

         23  protect, but to allow property to move into the

         24  future and to have that balance.

         25                 In all his work, both professionally,
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          2  and I should say personally, he is also a steward of

          3  one of the old houses in the Bronx and has managed

          4  to find a way to live comfortably and also protect

          5  this for future generations.

          6                 I would also note in terms of the

          7  Committee's questions, that it is very common for

          8  the Commission to have preservation architects on

          9  the Commission who had to balance the conflict with

         10  their professional work and their firm's work and,

         11  in fact, we always know we're extraordinarily lucky

         12  when we can actually convince people with that level

         13  of expertise to join us on the other side of the

         14  table and serve the City by their knowledge being

         15  applied.

         16                 The Commissioners are not paid and

         17  they work many hours and many days during the month

         18  on a volunteered basis.  I do think all the

         19  Commissioners should be commended, and Mr. Byrns

         20  particularly, to take this step that will require

         21  him to give up particular work in the City in order

         22  to serve the future of our City by really protecting

         23  our architectural heritage.  So, I'm very pleased to

         24  have this moment to speak on his behalf and I hope

         25  he is confirmed.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, Ms. Raab,

          3  don't leave. Council Member Oddo would like to ask

          4  you a question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Ms. Raab, do

          6  you miss working with me?

          7                 MS. RAAB:  I --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Hey, hey, hey --

          9                 MS. RAAB: I miss working with you,

         10  Councilwoman Quinn, Speaker, who just left.  I was

         11  going to say that when I was at the Commission, I

         12  had the great pleasure to work with Council Member

         13  Provenzano on City Island on the Pell Barlow

         14  (phonetic) mansion in her district.  I also take a

         15  little personal credit of turning Councilman Oddo

         16  into a preservationist.  So, and I, we felt very

         17  good of that.  So, and we miss it very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you for

         19  coming down Ms. Raab.  At this point, there be no

         20  further questions for Mr. Byrns, if Ms. -- We did

         21  all the housekeeping stuff, and again, Mr. Byrns,

         22  thank you for wanting to serve.  I appreciate the

         23  sacrifice that you're making for this City and I

         24  can't thank you enough for your desire to serve.

         25                 MR. BYRNS:  You're welcome.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  At this point,

          3  Ms. Blum, can you raise your right hand to be sworn

          4  in please.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Do you

          6  solemnly swear and affirm the testimony you are

          7  about     to give the Committee is the truth and the

          8  whole truth?

          9                 MS. BLUM:  I do.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Please state

         11  your name for the record.

         12                 MS. BLUM:  Monica Blum.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you,

         14  witness is sworn.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Sorry, Ms. Blum,

         16  I'm rushing. Can you, do you have an opening

         17  statement that you would like --

         18                 MS. BLUM:  -- I do not, other than to

         19  thank you and the other distinguished Members of the

         20  Committee for giving me this opportunity today, but

         21  no statement.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.  It's my

         23  understanding that while serving as a Member of the

         24  Conflicts of Interest Board, you will continue to

         25  serve as a Member of the Mayor's Committee on
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          2  Appointments.  We think it's highly likely that you

          3  may be asked to handle a matter involving a current

          4  or former public servant, who you considered as a

          5  member of the Mayor's Committee on Appointments.

          6                 Through your experience on that

          7  Committee, you may be privy to supplementary

          8  information not provided to the Conflicts of

          9  Interest Board.  It is this Committee's belief that

         10  you will need to seek the advice of the Board,

         11  Conflicts of Interest Board, itself, to determine

         12  whether recusal is warranted in those instances.

         13  This issue was raised by a question as part of the

         14  Investigation interview process, and could you share

         15  your answer with the Committee, and would you take

         16  the same action for advisory and enforcement

         17  matters?

         18                 MS. BLUM:  To the latter question,

         19  yes.  In the -- I'm not sure that this will occur,

         20  but in the event that a candidate that I interviewed

         21  as a member of the Appointments Committee would

         22  subsequently have a matter pending before the

         23  Conflicts of Interest Board, it's my intention to,

         24  of course, notify my colleagues and the staff, and

         25  seek their advice and guidance, and I would expect
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          2  that I would take the appropriate action based on

          3  their recommendation.  It would appear to me that

          4  recusal would probably be appropriate --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Can you speak a

          6  little closer to the mic, please.

          7                 MS. BLUM: It would appear to me that

          8  recusal would probably be appropriate were that

          9  situation to arise. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.  So,

         11  you're willing to recuse yourself when and if there

         12  are any persons or persons that have come before you

         13  in your --

         14                 MS. BLUM:   Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, and you

         16  worked with Ms. Andrea Davis, who snuck out, I guess

         17  she changed her mind about supporting you or she

         18  just has something else --

         19                 MS. BLUM:  I don't know, I hope not.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  I'm sorry, I'm

         21  just teasing. I needed to laugh at myself.  Okay,

         22  any questions by Members? Going once, going twice,

         23  Council Member Sears.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you Mr.

         25  Chair.  I appreciate the opportunity to sit in on
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          2  your Committee Meeting. I am the Chair of the

          3  Standards and Ethics Committee and one of the, the

          4  question was asked by the Chair of the Committee,

          5  but one of the concerns I have when you recuse

          6  yourself, if it ever came to that, is it would be

          7  reducing the number of members that would vote and

          8  that could be a, that could be a problem.

          9                 Certainly, that may not happen.  But,

         10  I think that the number of the members on the

         11  Committee are very essential to the work that the

         12  COIB does, and I think that to have a member that

         13  would not be able to vote in certain circumstances,

         14  I think, harms the Board.  I really do.  I think

         15  every vote is essential on the issues that they have

         16  to vote on.

         17                 For instance, I think a lot would

         18  depend and your capacity as being on the

         19  Appointments Committee, how many have you approved

         20  and voted on that you think, at some time, may have

         21  to come before, or may not, and I'm not saying that

         22  you're interpreting exactly who they are, what they

         23  are and their behavior.  But, if it has been a

         24  substantial number of mayoral appointees, you know,

         25  the Board is responsible for financial disclosures,
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          2  it's responsible for advisory opinions, and it has a

          3  very intimate responsibility.  So, maybe you could

          4  address that?

          5                 MS. BLUM:  Yes.  I'm aware of the

          6  responsibilities of the Board.  The Advisory

          7  Committee is advisory only and in the, does not deal

          8  with Commissioners, agency heads, and the number of

          9  appointments -- I mean, I don't really know the

         10  actual number of appointments -- but the number of

         11  candidates is really relatively small, and I

         12  wouldn't think that, again, I can't speculate about

         13  what will happen in the future --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  -- I

         15  understand that --

         16                 MS. BLUM:  But I would not anticipate

         17  that it's a large number, that this would happen

         18  very frequently, because many of these Boards and

         19  Commissions are also only advisory.  So, while I

         20  recognize that recusal is not always the best

         21  situation, it has to be, there are times when it's

         22  unavoidable, and I would hope that it wouldn't

         23  happen very often.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  If the

         25  Committee is advisory, and if I may ask, has, on how

                                                            64

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  many occasions, and it's just an estimate, when what

          3  the Committee has advised was not followed by the

          4  Mayor.  It would seem that if it's advisory, and in

          5  every, in most instances, your advice would not be

          6  carried out, that's something else again.  But, just

          7  how effective is the advice of the Committee?

          8                 MS. BLUM:  Well, the Committee's

          9  role, the Advisory Committee's role is to present a

         10  number of candidates, rarely, at least I believe in

         11  my recollection, both when I staffed that job -- I

         12  had that job many years ago -- and today as well,

         13  the Mayor has given a number of appointment,

         14  recommended appointments, and whether he follows

         15  them or not is not something that I really keep

         16  track of.  It's really, the role of the Committee is

         17  to try to identify outstanding people for possible

         18  appointment to Boards and Commissions.  That's the

         19  role.  It's, the actual selection, we really have

         20  nothing to do with the selection.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you Mr.

         22  Chair --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Ms.

         25  Blum.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  -- Council

          3  Member Fidler.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Just to

          5  follow- up, because I don't really understand the

          6  Mayoral Advisory role.  You are recommending, you

          7  said you're not involved with Commissioners or

          8  agency heads.  What do you make your recommendations

          9  for?  For what positions?

         10                 MS. BLUM:  Boards, some Boards and

         11  Commissions, but no agency heads, no high- level

         12  Commissioners.  So, Boards and Commissions and there

         13  are --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Can you just

         15  give me some examples, I'm just at a loss.

         16                 MS. BLUM:  Environmental Control

         17  Board, MACK (phonetic), the Loft Board, those are

         18  some that we've made recommendations for.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I mean you

         20  wouldn't foresee that someone whose serving on ECB

         21  or on the Loft Board might not have a conflict of

         22  interest issue?

         23                 MS. BLUM:  I think that there's

         24  always --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  -- I think it
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          2  would be more, frankly, more likely to have one than

          3  a Commissioner.

          4                 MS. BLUM:  Well, I'm not going to

          5  speculate on that.  I would hope that during the

          6  process of identifying potential candidates, efforts

          7  are made to identify people who will not have

          8  conflicts.  Now, it's hard to speculate, they may

          9  occur.  But, the goal is to find the best people for

         10  possible service, people with integrity, who follow

         11  the highest ethical standards.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Without a

         13  doubt, and no one would suggest otherwise.  But, you

         14  know, I could well, I mean we just had, you know, a

         15  whole conversation with Mr. Byrns, where, I mean,

         16  obviously, he's indicated that he's going to do the

         17  right thing --

         18                 MS. BLUM: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  -- And you

         20  know, because he's going to Landmarks Board, because

         21  he's qualified in Landmarks, so qualified, because

         22  he's been doing that kind of work, that, you know,

         23  if he had not, if he does not, you know, follow the

         24  conflict of interest rules that, as he says he's

         25  going to, he would come before the Conflicts of
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          2  Interest Board --

          3                 MS. BLUM: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  -- Someone

          5  who does loft work, who might be on the Loft Board,

          6  might be an excellent person, appearing to be of

          7  great moral character, precisely because they're in

          8  the business of renovating lofts or whatever it is

          9  the Loft Board does.

         10                 So, you know, I'm not so concerned

         11  about Commissioners and agency heads.  I'm concerned

         12  about the people who serve on these Boards.  So,

         13  when you're, in your role on the Mayor's Committee,

         14  when you recommend people, do you recommend them for

         15  particular Boards, or just, these are people that

         16  you should look at, they're very, they're great

         17  integrity and service and all that?

         18                 MS. BLUM:  Usually, for particular

         19  Boards, but sometimes for more than one, if there no

         20  vacancies or if they have the skill and expertise.

         21  But, usually we're presented potential candidates

         22  for a particular Board.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  And you

         24  served on the Mayor's Board for how long?

         25                 MS. BLUM:  The Mayor's Committee on
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          2  Appointments?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Yes, the

          4  Mayor's Committee.

          5                 MS. BLUM:  About two years.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  And can you

          7  just give me a rough idea of how many people have

          8  been recommended out of the Committee over that

          9  period of time?

         10                 MS. BLUM:  You know, I really, I'm

         11  not sure of the number, but it's not --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'm not going

         13  to hold you down --

         14                 MS. BLUM: I --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  --  To a

         16  specific number. I mean are we talking about five,

         17  50 --

         18                 MS. BLUM: No --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  -- 500.

         20                 MS. BLUM:  Probably 50, maybe a

         21  little more than that, but certainly not 500.  I

         22  mean, it's, maybe 75, I really don't know the

         23  number.  We interview a fair number, not all of them

         24  get recommended.  But, I didn't look up that number

         25  and you know, I really --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  -- No, I

          3  just, you know what? Frankly, I'd never even heard

          4  of the Mayor's Committee. So, this is all

          5  educational to me.  I just wanted to get some idea

          6  of what, you know, what the potential for conflict

          7  would be.

          8                 MS. BLUM:  Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         11  Chris Quinn, but before, I just want to recognize

         12  Mr. Mark Davies, the Executive Director for the

         13  Conflicts of Interest Board sitting over there

         14  quietly.  He's not frowning yet, so I guess you're

         15  doing okay Mrs. Blum.  So, Council Member Quinn --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I was just

         17  wondering --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  --  Blum, sorry,

         19  I keep --

         20                 MS. BLUM: That's okay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  -- How long is

         22  your term on the Appointments Board?

         23                 MS. BLUM:  I think it's at the

         24  pleasure of the Mayor, and I think, you know, I

         25  think it's at the pleasure of the Mayor.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay, so it's

          3  not a set time, because I was going to ask --

          4                 MS. BLUM:  No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: -- If when this

          6  term ended, you were planning on, you know, perhaps

          7  not, in stepping down and not taking another --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  The term is due

          9  to expire in 2006, and where she's a --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  No, the

         11  Appointments Board, not the Conflicts Board.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Oh, sorry.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Do you know if

         14  there's ever been anybody who served on the

         15  Appointments Board who served on another City Board,

         16  so we could, you know, have a frame of --

         17                 MS. BLUM: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And what was

         19  that?

         20                 MS. BLUM:  Well, on the current

         21  Appointments Committee, which is purely advisory --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         23                 MS. BLUM: My colleague and friend,

         24  Fred Cirullo, serves both on Appointments and

         25  Campaign Finance.  I have to think about the others.
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          2  I, you know, I'm not sure about the other Members.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And has that

          4  caused a lot of opportunities where, you know, our

          5  former colleague has had to recuse himself?  This

          6  kind of goes back to the question that I think that

          7  Chairperson Sears raised about just raw numbers of

          8  Commissioners.

          9                 MS. BLUM:  Right, well he's never,

         10  certainly not at Appointments.  I don't know what's

         11  happened at Campaign Finance.  But, I, you know, I'm

         12  sure that he, like myself, would certainly disclose,

         13  and we have whenever there have been issues that

         14  have required disclosure and then take appropriate

         15  action.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.  I

         18  just want to re- emphasize the point before we move

         19  to the vote, that while most of the advisory groups

         20  that you would, that you wouldn't really deal with

         21  directly because they come under another section of

         22  the City Charter, but I think the Council Members

         23  and myself are concerned, and the Committee's

         24  concerned about if you deal with, and which may have

         25  to come before you, City employees in an enforcement
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          2  capacity or people that are going back into public

          3  service as an enforcement capacity.

          4                 Since you did serve, even with the

          5  previous Mayor, as the Chair of the Appointments

          6  Committee, you have seen, or run into a few people,

          7  that number could be as much as 500, you know, while

          8  you were in touch with different people for certain

          9  positions.  So, we just want to be clear on the

         10  appearance of impropriety, that you're aware of it.

         11  While you probably have touched more people than you

         12  realized in that capacity as the Appointments

         13  Commissioner, and that you would keep that uppermost

         14  in your mind.

         15                 Hopefully, some of those people will

         16  have, you know, done well and will be considered for

         17  positions.  Hopefully, not so many that you'd have

         18  to recuse yourself from every meeting, but you have

         19  been in a key person in dictating or betting who

         20  would be serving in capacities for, not just the

         21  past three years, but for at least seven years.  So,

         22  you know --

         23                 MS. BLUM:   I --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  --  We're just

         25  concerned that there, you know, when those people do
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          2  come forward, that you would make that disclosure

          3  and let the Board know, so that later on, they would

          4  not be --

          5                 MS. BLUM:  Absolutely.  You know,

          6  I've spent, I spent 20 years in City government, and

          7  then the last ten --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So --

          9                 MS. BLUM:  -- In non-profit --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:   You know

         11  everybody.

         12                 MS. BLUM:  Well, I mean, you know,

         13  I've devoted my career to City service, and I have

         14  always acted in accordance with the law, and I have

         15  always disclosed when there ever has been a

         16  conflict, if there ever were.  I intend to continue

         17  to do that, and I frankly think that my background

         18  in City government will be a benefit, I hope, to the

         19  Conflicts of Interest Board.  I have great respect

         20  for that organization.

         21                 I worked with the late Judith Grad

         22  (phonetic) when it was the Board of Ethics, I'm

         23  telling you how old I am, and I was really

         24  responsible for setting up the Inspector General

         25  system in all the agencies.  So, this is really a
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          2  very important and near and dear to my heart, and I

          3  hope that I'll be able to make a contribution, and I

          4  intend to comport myself the way I always have

          5  throughout my career.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  I'm sure you

          7  will --

          8                 MS. BLUM: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  We just wanted

         10  to get it on the record to clear up any appearance

         11  of impropriety that may come up and these are

         12  certain housekeeping things that we have to do our

         13  due diligence as a Committee.  I want to

         14  congratulate my Members for picking that up and

         15  making sure that all of our due diligence is done on

         16  all of our behalf while we try to protect the City.

         17                 At this point, I'm going to move to a

         18  vote. Again, I want to thank Angela Cavaluzzi, Kirk

         19  Tzanides, Steven Byrns, and yourself, Monica Blum,

         20  for your desire to serve in the capacities that

         21  you're moving into in City government.

         22                 These are actually very important

         23  Committees, the City Planning Commission, the Tax

         24  Commission, the Landmarks Preservation and the

         25  Conflicts of Interest Board, are major entities that
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          2  get a lot of opportunities to affect and impact how

          3  our government is run.  I want to thank you for your

          4  desire to serve.  At this point, we'll move to a

          5  vote, would you call the roll please.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Comrie.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Aye on all.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Quinn.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Rivera.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Aye on all.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Reyna.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Aye on all.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Clarke.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Mr. Chair,

         15  may I be excused to explain my vote?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  I just really

         18  wanted to take a moment to say to, in particular,

         19  Ms. Blum, that, you know, while you've expressed

         20  quite openly and honestly your level of personal

         21  integrity with respect to what I think some of us

         22  may observe as a really challenging situation that

         23  you're in, I want you to bear in mind that I am

         24  concerned that just in our own human capacity,

         25  sometimes things happen.
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          2                 So, I hope that you'll be very

          3  mindful in the various roles that you're playing in

          4  public service here, that should an opportunity or

          5  should an occasion arise where you may see a

          6  conflict, that you're very sensitive to it, and that

          7  you will do what is, what needs to be done to make

          8  sure that, you know, that people involved in this

          9  process receive the best consideration that they can

         10  possibly receive.  Because you'll be privy to

         11  information that your average Appointments person or

         12  Conflict of Interest person may not be aware of, and

         13  that's just by nature of your service.

         14                 So, it is a concern, and I just

         15  wanted to raise that.  But, having said it and

         16  having heard what you've said, I want to vote aye on

         17  all, for all of the appointees before us today.

         18  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Fidler.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Mr. Chairman,

         22  may I be excused to explain my vote?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Yes sir.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I am also

         25  concerned, not by anything in Ms. Blum's character
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          2  or credentials, and not so much by the issue of

          3  knowing things that other Members of the Board might

          4  not know, but by the natural human tendency that

          5  when someone you've recommended for a position comes

          6  before the Board, perhaps with some kind of

          7  conflict, in the back of your head, to not want to

          8  say, gee, maybe we made a mistake in recommending

          9  this individual.

         10                 So, I am concerned that in, when the

         11  Mayor recommended this appointment that that issue

         12  was not considered. That, perhaps, that the path

         13  that Ms. Blum has traveled to get here doesn't

         14  suggest that Conflict of Interest Board is the best

         15  place for her to continue her government service.

         16  So, I would join my colleague, Yvette Clarke's

         17  recommendation, Ms. Blum, that as a Member of the

         18  Board, you be extra cautious when anyone comes

         19  before you that you have had a chance to pass on

         20  previously, and perhaps recommended for their

         21  appointment.

         22                 Nonetheless, as a general philosophy,

         23  I always believe that absent an absolutely

         24  compelling public reason to reject a nomination,

         25  that the Mayor is entitled to appoint those people
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          2  he sees fit.  I certainly don't see anything in your

          3  character or your presentation today that make me

          4  doubt that you are fit as it relates to character

          5  and integrity.  Having said all that, I will then

          6  vote aye on all four candidates.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Weprin.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Aye on all.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Quinn.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Mr. Chair, if

         11  I may be excused to explain my vote.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Yes ma'am.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I just wanted

         14  to kind of be associated with the comments and

         15  thoughts of Council Members Fidler and Clarke.  You

         16  know, again, as we discuss the appointment to the

         17  Conflicts of Interest Board, it is, I just want to

         18  reiterate what my colleagues said, it's nothing

         19  personal or in any way, shape or form a reflection

         20  on your credentials or anything like that.

         21                 I share the concern that's been

         22  raised that I'm not sure it's a good, policy may not

         23  be the right work, but policy position for the City

         24  to be having people who are on the Appointments

         25  Board, sitting on the Conflicts of Interest Board,

                                                            79

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  when that Board has, you know, enforcement

          3  responsibilities and capacities, and that could very

          4  much intersect with the some of the people who have

          5  been appointed, recommended through the Appointment

          6  Board or appointed through the Appointment Board.

          7                 I think it would be just a cleaner

          8  setup for the City and the Conflict of Interest

          9  Board to not have such overlap. I don't think it is,

         10  you know, a violation or anything of that level, I

         11  just think it would be a cleaner public face if that

         12  was not the case.

         13                 You know, I agree with what Council

         14  Member Fidler said, short of, you know, something

         15  seriously wrong with the applicant's character, as

         16  it relates to generally or to the Board that the

         17  Mayor wishes to put them on, and their knowledge, et

         18  cetera, I also try not to disapprove or abstain on

         19  candidates because it is, you know, the Mayor's

         20  prerogative.

         21                 I hope through the Office of

         22  Legislative Affairs and others who are here today,

         23  the concerns, not about this candidate, but about

         24  the decision to put someone on both, gets sent back

         25  to the Mayor, so they could be heard and, perhaps,
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          2  even informal discussions between this Committee and

          3  the Mayor's folks could happen on that.  I think

          4  it's something we, as the Council, not as it relates

          5  to this candidate, but in general, should monitor

          6  and look at to make sure that there is not even the

          7  appearance or question of anything inappropriate, as

          8  it relates to people serving on both, on that Board

          9  and other Boards that have enforcement

         10  responsibilities and enforcement capacities.

         11                 So, that said, since, as I said, I

         12  don't think there is anything wrong with this, in

         13  any way, shape or form, with the candidate's

         14  credentials or experience as it relates to serving

         15  on the Conflicts Board, I vote aye, but with a

         16  request that the Mayor's Office, you know, address

         17  those concerns, which have been raised by this

         18  Committee.  I vote aye.  Thank you.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Oddo.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  By a vote of

         22  11 in the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         23  abstentions, all items are adopted.  Council

         24  Members, please the Committee Report.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Again, thank you
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          2  ladies and gentlemen for wanting to serve.  Ms.

          3  Blum, I think you heard the desire and the concerns

          4  of the Committee.  I'm sure that you will meet those

          5  in an admirable and professional manner, and we look

          6  forward to working with the Conflicts of Interest

          7  Committee on other matters.  Thank you all very much

          8   --

          9                 MS. BLUM: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  -- Before I

         11  adjourn, I just want to recognize that, in the back,

         12  we have some Members of the Brooklyn Puerto Rican

         13  Day Parade Organizing Committee.  I think they

         14  brought a couple of their distinguished young ladies

         15  with them that have won awards, and I just want to

         16  congratulate them for coming down to the hall today,

         17  and for continuing to do the parade.  I hope that

         18  you have many more years of the parade.  I see that

         19  it's your eleventh year and I hope it continues to

         20  grow and prosper.  Thank you for coming today.

         21                 With that, we'll adjourn.  Members,

         22  please return your books and we'll keep the vote

         23  open for another 20 minutes. Thank you very much.

         24  Patrick, tell Ms. Davis, thank you also.

         25                 (Meeting adjourned at 12:05 p.m.)
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